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Shiloh Church, originally the Trinity School building, stands^a|f'>,/"; 
the south-west corner of Mary and School Streets. The site was\desiip~" - 
nated as school land by Walter Clarke, four times governor of the.£h$'d,e?.\< 
Island colony. Miss Franklin notes deeds as early as 1712 referring''to *$'\ 
"ye new school house. Mr. Mason refers to a lot lease made tp-Mr.^ ; *J 
Bennett contained in Nathaniel Kay's bequest to Trinity Church'. The 
first Kay-endowed school was built in 17hl; Cornelius Bennett^Kas i\tjN 
first master.

.
\r

The second Kay school the present building was built in 
On February 11, 179°, the wardens and vestry of Trinity Church voted, 
"that a school house be built on the lot where the old house stood; that 
it be iiO_ft. long and 2$ ft. wide; a tower of .eight., ft. square,, rising 
out of the body of the building at the east end, eight ft. above the 
roof; that there be a cellar under the whole; that a chimney be built at 
^HeTwest end in the centre; that there bf two arched windows at the west 
end of 2h squares of 7x9 glass, exclusive of the arch and three such 
windows on each side, and that the whole be finished in a plain, neat 
manner ..."

This building was a rectangular Georgian structure, gable-end to 
the street. The foundation is of fieldstone, and there is a granite 
stoop. The entrance~Ts" flush with the sidewalk on School Street; there 
is no sidewalk on the Mary Street side. Two small alleys are on the 
south and west sides of the -property. Present wall covering is shingle 
and clapboard. The entrance was remodelled by Shiloh Church in 1897  
Stained glass has been substituted for the original small panes of clear 
glass in the arched windos. The short tower over the entrance has a 
boldly projecting classical cornice. Above it the octagonal cupola or 
belfry has open arches between slender, plain supports. A course of 
dentils runs directly below its cornice. The cupola .has a concave um­ 
brella roof with a turned, ball-capped finial which may originally have 
held a weathervane.

In 188k an annex structure of greater height than the church was 
built directly onto its south side. This contains a parish hall at 
ground-level, with living quarters for the pas^OD^'above. It is an ad­ 
joined parallel rectangle of two storeys carrying a third floor within 
a decked mansard roof with bracketted cornice. Above^jbhe ground, floor, 
the upper portion of this structure has been projected in "garrison- 
house" fashion. At the front of the second floor is a central, three- 
window angular bay or oriel; a dormer with paired windows is at the front 
of the third, or mansard, floor. The building is clapboarded like the 
church beside it.

(See Continuation Sheet.)
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7. Description.

The interior of the old school-church is open to the roof, forming 
a plain, barn-like preaching hall. The strong, plain roof timbers of the 
building proclaim its early construction, though the rafter-ends have been, 
in the course of renovations, given supposedly-supporting wall brackets of 
simple, sawn "Gothic" form. At the east^end, a small vestibule projects 
into the building and has at one side stairs leading to a gallery across 
that end of the building. This gallery is supported on robust, plain 
wooden piers with knee-brackets given sawn curves on their undersides; it 
is railed with plain vertical boarding. Probably at the same time that the 
eallery was introduced, a shallow altar or pulpit area was pushed out at 
the west end of the building;; a high window cut above this area; and paired 
arched windows cut above the entrance at the east, at gallery-level.
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TATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Nathariiel_Kay5 collector of customs in Newport in the reign of 
Queen £rme, died in 173li, bequeathing his entire estate (after his 
widow's usufruct) to Trinity Church, to found "a school to teach ten 
poor boys their grammar and the mathematics gratis." The first Trinity 
School was erected in I'7'lil and replaced by the present building in 17,99, 
Operation of a day school under the Kay endowment continued here until 
I8S7T"

In 1868, the school-house was .sold for ŝ? 2,000 to .the Negro con­ 
gregation of Shil oh Church, which had been founded in l861i by "the Rev. 
Ectrmrnd- Kelley, In 1873 $ 1,600 was spent on renovations to the build­ 
ing. The long and constructive pastorship of the Rev. Henry Jeters, 
highly regarded in Newnort, began in 1875 and encompassed the construc­ 
tion of the adjacent parish hall, with parsonage above, in l881u

In use for either educational or religious purposes for nearly 
175 years, the building of 1799 together with its annex continues to 
house the Shiloh congregation, small in number but staunch and spiri­ 
tually rich, proudly independent yet actively participant in community 
and cultural affairs.
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GEOGRAPHICAL COORDINATES 
Latitude: hl° 29t 17" N 
Longitude: 71° 18' h5" W
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